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PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

September 30,
2012

December 31,
2011

(unaudited)
Assets:
Real estate properties:
Land $62,693 $49,114
Buildings and improvements 625,361 487,396
Construction in progress 718 4,983

688,772 541,493
Less accumulated depreciation (169,293 ) (146,698 )
Real estate properties, net 519,479 394,795
Mortgage and other notes receivable, net 79,325 78,672
Investment in preferred stock, at cost 38,132 38,132
Cash and cash equivalents 4,410 15,886
Marketable securities 11,806 11,364
Straight-line rent receivable 11,030 8,706
Deferred costs and other assets 11,091 2,627
Assets held for sale, net — 29,381
Total Assets $675,273 $579,563

Liabilities and Equity:
Debt $194,250 $97,300
Real estate purchase liabilities 6,478 9,478
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,114 3,483
Dividends payable 18,646 24,144
Deferred income 1,374 1,673
Total Liabilities 224,862 136,078

Commitments and Contingencies

National Health Investors Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized;
27,830,311 and 27,751,208 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 278 278
Capital in excess of par value 467,600 465,678
Cumulative dividends in excess of net income (34,806 ) (29,652 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income 6,375 7,181
Total National Health Investors Stockholders' Equity 439,447 443,485
Noncontrolling interest 10,964 —
Total Equity 450,411 443,485
Total Liabilities and Equity $675,273 $579,563
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The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed
consolidated financial statements. The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011 was derived
from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date.
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands except share and per share amounts)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(unaudited) (unaudited)

Revenues:
Rental income $22,285 $19,975 $64,905 $59,868
Mortgage interest income 1,879 1,689 5,428 4,919
Investment income and other 1,348 1,107 3,462 3,499

25,512 22,771 73,795 68,286
Expenses:
Depreciation 5,892 2,930 12,653 8,729
Interest expense 854 1,781 2,176 2,628
Legal expense 205 119 424 448
Franchise, excise and other taxes 271 160 626 642
General and administrative 1,639 1,234 6,018 6,371
Loan and realty losses (recoveries) 2,300 (99 ) 2,300 (99 )

11,161 6,125 24,197 18,719
Income before unconsolidated entity, gains on sales of marketable
securities, discontinued operations and noncontrolling interest 14,351 16,646 49,598 49,567
Income from unconsolidated entity — — — —
Gains on sales of marketable securities — 1,090 30 9,899
Income from continuing operations 14,351 17,736 49,628 59,466
Discontinued operations
Income from operations - discontinued — 24 — 204
Gain on sales of real estate — 1,048 — 3,348
Income from discontinued operations — 1,072 — 3,552
Net income 14,351 18,808 49,628 63,018
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest — — — —
Net income attributable to common stockholders 14,351 18,808 49,628 63,018
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Change in unrealized gains on securities (1,336 ) (862 ) 567 (104 )
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains in net income — (1,090 ) (30 ) (9,899 )
Decrease in fair value of cash flow hedge (436 ) — (1,343 ) —
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (1,772 ) (1,952 ) (806 ) (10,003 )
Total comprehensive income $12,579 $16,856 $48,822 $53,015

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 27,830,311 27,729,560 27,799,750 27,711,474
Diluted 27,862,582 27,789,725 27,828,879 27,795,150
Earnings per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations attributable to common
stockholders $.52 $.64 $1.78 $2.14

Discontinued operations — .04 — .13
$.52 $.68 $1.78 $2.27
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Net income per common share attributable to common
stockholders
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations attributable to common
stockholders $.52 $.64 $1.78 $2.14

Discontinued operations — .04 — .13
Net income per common share attributable to common
stockholders $.52 $.68 $1.78 $2.27

The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012 2011
(unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $49,628 $63,018
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 12,653 8,768
Straight-line rental income (2,325 ) (2,762 )
Non-cash interest income on construction loan — (781 )
Loan and realty losses (recoveries) 2,300 (99 )
Gain on sales of real estate — (3,348 )
Net realized gains on sales of marketable securities (30 ) (9,899 )
Share-based compensation 1,924 2,912
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement — 922
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Deferred costs and other assets 596 67
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (712 ) (395 )
Deferred income (299 ) 253
Net cash provided by operating activities 63,735 58,656
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in mortgage notes receivable (5,797 ) (6,567 )
Collection of mortgage notes receivable 2,844 3,584
Investment in real estate properties (77,740 ) (24,935 )
Investment in unconsolidated entity (8,309 ) —
Payment of real estate purchase liability (3,000 ) —
Receipt of earnest money deposit — 525
Proceeds from dispositions of real estate property — 8,971
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 125 12,862
Net cash used in investing activities (91,877 ) (5,560 )
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in borrowings under revolving credit facilities (42,300 ) (37,765 )
Borrowings on term loan 120,000 50,000
Debt issuance costs paid (753 ) —
Principal payments on term loan — (1,875 )
Stock options exercised (2 ) 199
Dividends paid to stockholders (60,279 ) (50,835 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 16,666 (40,276 )

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,476 ) 12,820
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 15,886 2,664
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $4,410 $15,484
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The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed
consolidated financial statements.

5

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

9



Table of Contents

NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012 2011
(unaudited)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $2,129 $1,781
Supplemental schedule of non-cash activities:
Assumption of debt in real estate acquisition $19,250 $—
Decrease in fair value of cash flow hedge $1,343 $—
Earnest money deposit applied to sale of real estate $— $4,000

The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY
(in thousands except share and per share amounts)

Common Stock

Capital in
Excess of
Par Value

Cumulative
Dividends
in Excess
of Net
Income

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Total
National
Health
Investors
Stockholders'
Equity

Noncontrolling
Interest

Total
EquityShares Amount

Balances at December
31, 2011 27,751,208 $ 278 $465,678 $ (29,652 ) $ 7,181 $ 443,485 $ — $443,485

Total comprehensive
income — — — 49,628 (806 ) 48,822 — 48,822

Noncontrolling interest
conveyed in acquisition — — — — — — 10,964 10,964

Shares issued on stock
options exercised 79,103 — (2 ) — — (2 ) — (2 )

Share-based
compensation — — 1,924 — — 1,924 — 1,924

Dividends declared,
$1.97 per share — — — (54,782 ) — (54,782 ) — (54,782 )

Balances at September
30, 2012 (unaudited) 27,830,311 $ 278 $467,600 $ (34,806 ) $ 6,375 $ 439,447 $ 10,964 $450,411

The accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2012 
(unaudited)

NOTE 1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We, the management of National Health Investors, Inc., ("NHI" or the "Company") believe that the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements to which these notes are attached include all normal, recurring
adjustments which are necessary to fairly present the condensed consolidated financial position, results of operations
and cash flows of NHI in all material respects. The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011 has
been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date. We assume that users of these condensed
consolidated financial statements have read or have access to the audited December 31, 2011 consolidated financial
statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and that the
adequacy of additional disclosure needed for a fair presentation, except in regard to material contingencies, may be
determined in that context. Accordingly, footnotes and other disclosures which would substantially duplicate those
contained in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 have been omitted.
This condensed consolidated financial information is not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
a full year for a variety of reasons including, but not limited to, acquisitions and dispositions, changes in interest rates,
rents and the timing of debt and equity financings. For a better understanding of NHI and its condensed consolidated
financial statements, we recommend reading these condensed consolidated financial statements in conjunction with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, which are included in our 2011
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, a copy of which is available
at our web site: www.nhireit.com.

Principles of Consolidation – The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include our accounts, our
wholly-owned subsidiaries and a joint venture entity over which we exercise control. Significant inter-company
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. Net income is reduced by the portion of net income
attributable to noncontrolling interests. We account for our investments in joint ventures based on the type of
controlling rights held by those members' interests in limited liability companies. Such controlling rights may preclude
consolidation by the majority equity owner in those circumstances in which the majority equity owner would
otherwise consolidate the joint venture.

Investment in Unconsolidated Entity – We report our investment in an unconsolidated entity, over whose operating and
financial policies we have the ability to exercise significant influence but not control, under the equity method of
accounting. Under this method of accounting, our share of the entity's earnings or losses will be included in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The initial carrying value of our investment in the unconsolidated entity is based on the fair value of the net assets of
the entity at the time we acquired a joint venture interest. We estimate fair values of the net assets of our equity
method investees based on discounted cash flow models. The inputs we use in these models are based on assumptions
that we believe to be within a reasonable range of current market rates for the respective investments.

We evaluate our investment in the unconsolidated entity for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of our investment in the unconsolidated entity may exceed the fair value. If it is
determined that a decline in the fair value of our investment in the unconsolidated entity is other-than-temporary, and
if such reduced fair value is below its carrying value, an impairment is recorded. The determination of the fair value of
our investment in the unconsolidated entity involves significant judgment. Our estimates consider all available
evidence including, as appropriate, the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at market rates,
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general economic conditions and trends and other relevant factors.

Noncontrolling Interest – We present the portion of any equity that we do not own in entities that we control (and thus
consolidate) as noncontrolling interests and classify such interests as a component of consolidated equity, separate
from total NHI stockholders' equity, on our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. In addition, we include net
income attributable to the noncontrolling interests in net income in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income.

Fair Value Measurements – Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A three-level fair value hierarchy is required to
prioritize the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as
follows:
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Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value
of the assets or liabilities. This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar
techniques that use significant unobservable inputs.

Derivatives – During the normal course of business, we use certain types of derivative instruments for the purpose of
managing interest rate risk. To qualify for hedge accounting, derivative instruments used for risk management
purposes must effectively reduce the risk exposure that they are designed to hedge. In addition, at inception of a
qualifying cash flow hedging relationship, the underlying transaction or transactions must be, and are expected to
remain, probable of occurring in accordance with our related assertions. All of our hedges are cash-flow hedges.

We recognize all derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives required to be bifurcated, as assets or
liabilities at their fair value in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value of derivative
instruments that are not designated as hedges or that do not meet the criteria of hedge accounting are recognized in
earnings. For derivatives designated in qualifying cash flow hedging relationships, the change in fair value of the
effective portion of the derivatives is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), whereas the
change in fair value of the ineffective portion is recognized in earnings.

Federal Income Taxes – We intend at all times to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Effective October 1, 2012, we will record income tax expense or benefit with
respect to one of our subsidiaries which will be taxed as a Taxable REIT Subsidiary ("TRS") under provisions similar
to those applicable to regular corporations. Aside from such income taxes which may be applicable to the taxable
income in our TRS, we will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax, provided that we continue to qualify as a REIT
and make distributions to stockholders equal to or in excess of our taxable income. Accordingly, no provision for
federal income taxes has been made in the condensed consolidated financial statements. Our failure to continue to
qualify under the applicable REIT qualification rules and regulations would have a material adverse impact on our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Earnings and profits, which determine the taxability of dividends to stockholders, differ from net income reported for
financial reporting purposes due primarily to differences in the basis of assets, estimated useful lives used to compute
depreciation expense, gains on sales of real estate, non-cash compensation expense and recognition of commitment
fees.

Our tax returns filed for years beginning in 2009 are subject to examination by taxing authorities. We classify interest
and penalties related to uncertain tax positions, if any, in our condensed consolidated financial statements as a
component of income tax expense.

Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale – We have reclassified for all periods presented the operations of the
facilities meeting the accounting criteria as either being sold or held for sale as discontinued operations in the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Long-lived assets classified as held for sale are
reported separately in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. When assets previously classified as being held
for sale no longer meet the accounting criteria for such classification, we reclassify those assets as held and used,
measured at the lower of their carrying amount before the assets were classified as held for sale (adjusted in the period
in which the decision not to sell was made for any depreciation expense that would have been recognized had the
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assets been continuously classified as held and used) or their fair value at the date of the subsequent decision not to
sell. Results of operations of the facilities previously disclosed in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income as discontinued operations which no longer meet the accounting criteria as held for sale are
reclassified into continuing operations for all periods presented.

Real Estate Properties – We evaluate the recoverability of the carrying value of our real estate properties on a
property-by-property basis.  On a quarterly basis, we review our properties for events or circumstances that indicate
the carrying value of the property may not be recoverable.  The need to recognize an impairment is based on estimated
undiscounted future cash flows from a property compared to the carrying value of that property.  If recognition of an
impairment is necessary, it is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the property exceeds the fair
value of the property.

Mortgage Notes Receivable – We evaluate the carrying values of our mortgage notes receivable on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.  On a quarterly basis, we review our notes receivable for recoverability when events
or circumstances, including the non-
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receipt of contractual principal and interest payments, significant deteriorations of the financial condition of the
borrower and significant adverse changes in general economic conditions, indicate that the carrying amount of the
note receivable may not be recoverable.  If necessary, an impairment is measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds the discounted cash flows expected to be received under the note receivable or, if foreclosure is
probable, the fair value of the collateral securing the note receivable.

Mortgage Interest and Rental Income – We identify loans and leases as non-performing if a required payment is not
received within 30 days of the date it is due. Our policy related to mortgage interest and rental income on
non-performing loans or leased real estate properties is to recognize rental or mortgage interest income in the period
when the related cash is received. Once classified as non-performing, we continue this policy through the life of the
affected loan or lease.

New Accounting Pronouncements – In the first quarter of our year ending December 31, 2012, we adopted ASU
2011-04, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and
Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS (“ASU 2011-04”). ASU 2011-04 requires incremental fair value
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on
our condensed consolidated financial statements.

In the first quarter of our year ending December 31, 2012, we adopted ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive
Income (“ASU 2011-05”). ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive
income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders' equity. ASU 2011-05 does not change the items that must
be reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to
net income. Accordingly, our adoption of this guidance is now incorporated retrospectively in our Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. The adoption of ASU 2011-05 did not have a material impact on
our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications – Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior period financial statements to conform to the
current period presentation.

NOTE 2.  REAL ESTATE

At September 30, 2012, we had investments in 109 health care real estate properties leased to operators, of which 41
properties were leased to National HealthCare Corporation (“NHC”), a publicly-held company and our largest customer.
The 41 properties leased to NHC include four facilities subleased to and operated by other companies, the lease
payments of which are guaranteed by NHC. Our current lease with NHC expires December 31, 2021 (excluding 3
additional 5-year renewal options).

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, rental income from continuing operations was $64,905,000, of which
$27,584,000 (43%) was recognized from NHC. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, rental income from
continuing operations was $59,868,000, of which $27,156,000 (45%) was recognized from NHC.

Under the terms of the master lease, annual base rent is $33,700,000 with additional percentage rent being equal to 4%
of the increase in the gross revenue of each facility over the 2007 base year.

The following table summarizes the percentage rent received and recognized from NHC (in thousands):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Current year $415 $415 $1,246 $1,246
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Prior year final certification1 — — 1,063 635
Total percentage rent $415 $415 $2,309 $1,881
1 For purposes of the percentage rent calculation described in the master lease agreement, NHC’s annual revenue by
facility for a given year is certified to NHI by March 31st of the following year.

Bickford

See Note 3 for a discussion of our joint venture arrangement with Bickford Senior Living ("Bickford").

Polaris Hospital

In September 2011, we entered into a $21,500,000 development and lease transaction with affiliates of Polaris
Hospital Company
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("Polaris") to develop a 60-bed general acute care hospital in Murfreesboro, Tennessee that will provide acute
psychiatric and in-patient rehabilitation services. At September 30, 2012, the new hospital was fully operational and
we reclassified the property from construction in progress. Our lease revenue commenced on October 1, 2012 at a
lease rate of 10% per year plus annual fixed escalators. The initial lease term is for 15 years. At September 30, 2012,
our investment in the new development totaled $19,022,000. Polaris is entitled to further advances based on a final
accounting of all project costs up to the maximum allowed in our original commitment.

Legend

On June 11, 2012, we completed the $13,470,000 purchase of a new, stabilized 125-bed skilled nursing facility
located in Kyle, Texas. This facility has been leased to affiliates of Legend Healthcare, LLC (“Legend”) for an initial
term of 15 years at a lease rate of 9% plus annual fixed escalators. Because Legend was a current lessee of the facility,
we accounted for the acquisition using the acquisition method as prescribed by FASB Accounting Standards
Codification ("ASC") Topic 805, Business Combinations. As part of this transaction, we recognized all identifiable
tangible assets at fair value at the date of acquisition (there were no identifiable intangible assets or liabilities
assumed) and attributed $1,096,000 of the purchase price to fair value of the land and $12,279,000 to the fair value of
building and improvements and expensed $95,000 in transaction costs at closing.

Santé

In August 2012, we completed a $25,120,000 purchase of a senior living campus in Silverdale, Washington totaling
138 units. The campus is leased to affiliates of Santé Partners, LLC ("Santé") over an initial term of 15 years at an
initial lease amount of $1,957,000 per year plus annual fixed escalators. We have committed to fund an additional
$3,500,000 for expansion and renovation of the facilities at an annual lease rate of 8.3%. The transaction was
accounted for as an asset purchase.

Chancellor

On September 30, 2012, we completed a $12,000,000 purchase of a stabilized 181-unit senior living campus in Loma
Linda, California. The campus is being leased to Chancellor Health Care, LLC ("Chancellor") for an initial term of 15
years at a lease rate of 9% plus annual fixed escalators. Because Chancellor was the current lessee of the facility, we
accounted for the acquisition using the acquisition method. As part of this transaction, we recognized all identifiable
tangible assets at fair value at the date of acquisition (there were no identifiable intangible assets or liabilities
assumed) and attributed $1,200,000 of the purchase price to fair value of the land, $10,500,000 to the fair value of
buildings and improvements, and $300,000 to the fair value of the operating equipment.

Fundamental

In September 2012, we canceled our agreement to sell five skilled nursing facilities in Texas to our current tenant,
affiliates of Fundamental Long Term Care Holdings, LLC (“Fundamental”). We agreed to a three-year extension of the
lease to February 29, 2016, with payments beginning at a lease amount of $4,989,000 per year plus annual fixed
escalators. We granted to Fundamental an option during the lease renewal period to purchase three of the facilities for
an aggregate price of $18,500,000.

As a result of this cancellation, this portfolio no longer meets the accounting criteria as being held for sale and we
have reclassified $29,381,000 previously reported in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as held for sale to
land of $1,735,000, buildings and improvements of $37,588,000, and accumulated depreciation of $9,942,000 at
September 30, 2012. We recorded $2,398,000 in "catch-up" depreciation expense in the third quarter of 2012 which is
the amount that would have been recognized as depreciation on these properties had the disposal group been
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continuously classified as held and used through September 30, 2012.

Dispositions of Certain Real Estate

In January 2011, we completed the sale of a skilled nursing facility in Texas having a carrying value of $4,039,000 for
cash proceeds of $4,500,000. In February 2011, we completed the sale of two medical office buildings having a
carrying value of $3,433,000 for cash proceeds of $5,271,000. In August 2011, we completed the sale of a 60-unit
assisted living facility located in Daytona Beach, Florida with a carrying value of $2,152,000 for cash proceeds of
$3,200,000.

We have classified the results of operations of these facilities as discontinued operations in our Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. The summary of operating results of all facilities classified as
discontinued operations is shown in Note 14.
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Tenant Transition

In June 2012, due to material noncompliance with our lease terms, we terminated our lease with a former tenant of
four assisted living and memory care facilities in Minnesota and transitioned the lease to a new tenant. As a result of
non-payment of scheduled rent, we realized lower cash payments on the lease of $450,000 and $434,000 for the three
months and six months ended June 30, 2012, respectively. The unplanned transition to a new tenant resulted in a
write-off for accounting purposes of $963,000 in straight-line rent receivables, $126,000 in billed receivables and
$171,000 in legal and other expenses. The former lease provided for an annual lease amount of $2,204,000. The
facilities contain a total of 126 units, are four to eight years old, and are now being leased to affiliates of White Pine
Senior Living ("White Pine") for an initial term of 13 years at an annual lease amount of $2,338,000 plus annual fixed
escalators. The first six months of the lease contains additional supplemental rent payments totaling $410,000. Our
rental income, regardless of the timing of scheduled payments, is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease and amounted to $939,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2012.

NOTE 3. JOINT VENTURE - BICKFORD SENIOR LIVING

On September 30, 2012, we acquired two assisted living/memory care facilities in Kansas totaling 170 units from our
current tenant Bickford in a joint venture transaction. Together with eight assisted living/memory care facilities that
we contributed to the joint venture, the real estate properties are held in our consolidated subsidiary ("PropCo"), of
which we retain an 85% ownership interest. The previous master lease with Bickford was renegotiated so that
effective October 1, 2012, the ten facilities are now leased to an unconsolidated operating company ("OpCo") of
which we also acquired an 85% ownership interest. For accounting purposes, we treated the arrangement as both an
asset purchase of two properties in PropCo and the acquisition of an 85% ownership interest in the residual profits and
losses of OpCo which is controlled by Bickford. The master lease between PropCo and OpCo is for an initial term of
five years plus renewal options, and has a 3% annual lease escalator. NHI is guaranteed a distribution of $6,008,000 in
the first year, plus an annual 3% escalator. We structured our joint venture with Bickford to be compliant with the
provisions of the REIT Investment Diversification and Empowerment Act of 2007 ("RIDEA") which permits NHI to
receive rent payments through a triple-net lease between PropCo, the property company, and the OpCo, and to be
designed to give NHI the opportunity to capture additional value on the improving performance of the operating
company through distributions to a Taxable REIT Subsidiary ("TRS"). Accordingly, the TRS holds our 85% equity
interest in OpCo in order to provide an organizational structure that will allow the TRS to engage in a broad range of
activities and share in revenues that would otherwise be non-qualifying income under the REIT gross income tests.

Consideration totaling $52,667,000 given by NHI to Bickford in the transaction included $22,453,000 in cash,
assumption of secured debt by the joint venture of $19,250,000 and a 15% equity interest in PropCo with a fair value
on the acquisition date of approximately $10,964,000. Fair value was estimated using current market capitalization
rates on net operating income. For accounting purposes, the cash consideration given includes the settlement of a
previous purchase liability with $2,922,000 in cash which resulted in a gain of $78,000, which is reported as a
component of investment income and other in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.
Fair value received by NHI in the transaction included $41,436,000 of real estate properties consisting of $4,100,000
in land and $37,336,000 in buildings, equipment and other improvements; $2,922,000 of purchase liability debt
canceled; and an investment in OpCo of $8,309,000 included in deferred costs and other assets in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The total purchase price for the OpCo and PropCo properties acquired, as discussed above, was allocated to the
tangible assets, equity interest in OpCo and liabilities based upon their relative fair values in accordance with the
company's accounting policies. Such allocations have not been finalized as we await final asset valuations and, as
such, the allocation of the purchase consideration included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheet at inception is preliminary and subject to adjustment. The noncontrolling interest relating to PropCo is also
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In conjunction with the joint venture, Bickford granted us the exclusive right to their future acquisitions, development
projects and refinancing transactions. We have plans to fund eight development projects over three years. At
September 30, 2012, we had purchased land and begun construction on two assisted living facilities having a
maximum cost of $18,000,000. Our costs incurred to date were $1,971,000.

PropCo and OpCo were established to grant NHI an 85% equity interest in each entity and, to Bickford, the remaining
15% share. At PropCo, all operations encompassing ordinary-course-of-business activities will be under NHI's
management. OpCo’s activities will be managed through an "eligible independent contractor" affiliated with, appointed
under, and subject to the oversight of Bickford. This organizational structure meets the requirements of Internal
Revenue Code regulations for TRS entities. Certain major business decisions at PropCo and OpCo are to be
board-managed with NHI and Bickford each holding 50% voting rights. At PropCo, major business decisions subject
to board-management are restricted to areas involving Bickford’s protective interests, therefore leaving control with
NHI. Business decisions at OpCo are also restricted in nature, though more broadly delineated to
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allow "substantive participating rights" by NHI. As a result of Bickford’s retention of operations oversight, control
over all ordinary-course-of-business matters, and 50% voting rights in major decisions, our participative influence at
OpCo does not amount to control of the entity.

Because of our control of ordinary-course-of-business activities in PropCo, we include its assets, liabilities,
noncontrolling interest and operations in our condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 810, Consolidation and ASC Topic 970, Real Estate – General.

Because of the disproportionate voting rights of the OpCo members, OpCo meets the accounting criteria to be
considered a variable interest entity based on the accounting guidance for variable interest entities in ASC Topic 810,
Consolidation. However, we are not the primary beneficiary of OpCo as our substantive participation rights do not
give us the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact OpCo’s economic performance. As a result, we
report our investment in OpCo, over whose operating and financial policies we have the ability to exercise significant
influence, but not control, under the equity method of accounting under ASC Topic 970, Real Estate - General,
Subtopic 323-30 Equity Method and Joint Ventures.

NOTE 4.  MORTGAGE AND OTHER NOTES RECEIVABLE

At September 30, 2012, we had investments in mortgage notes receivable secured by real estate and UCC liens on the
personal property of 30 health care properties. Certain of the notes receivable are also secured by guarantees of
significant parties to the notes and by cross-collateralization of properties with the same owner. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was considered necessary at September 30, 2012 or at December 31, 2011.

On April 12, 2012, we entered into a three-year loan to provide Capital Funding Group, Inc. (CFG) up to $15,000,000
to be used as mezzanine financing for its bridge-to-HUD lending program. Outstanding borrowings were $5,000,000
at September 30, 2012. This loan requires monthly payments of interest only at an annual rate of 13.5%.

We recognize interest income in the period in which cash is received on certain mortgage notes receivable which were
previously classified as non-performing and have an aggregate carrying value of $6,032,000 at September 30, 2012.

On September 30, 2012, we recorded a $2,300,000 impairment on a note receivable from SeniorTrust of Florida, Inc.
which had a carrying balance of $21,336,000. The impairment was based on NHI’s continuing collection history with
SeniorTrust and was estimated consistently with our policy of using discounted cash flow techniques. See Note 10 for
a description of our litigation with SeniorTrust.

NOTE 5.  INVESTMENT IN PREFERRED STOCK, AT COST

In September 1998, we purchased 2,000,000 shares of the cumulative preferred stock of LTC Properties, Inc. (“LTC”), a
publicly-held REIT. The nonvoting preferred stock is convertible into 2,000,000 shares of LTC common stock. The
closing price of LTC’s common stock at September 30, 2012 was $31.85 per share. The preferred stock has an annual
cumulative coupon rate of 8.5% payable quarterly and a liquidation preference of $19.25 per share. The preferred
stock is not redeemable by us or LTC. The preferred stock, which is not listed on a stock exchange, is considered a
non-marketable security and is recorded at cost in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. In accordance with
ASC Topic 825 Financial Instruments, paragraph 10-50 Disclosure-Overall, we have determined that, for our cost
basis investment in preferred stock, it is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the investment. Further, we have
identified no events that may have had an adverse effect on its fair value which would have required revisiting the
instrument's carrying value. Dividends to be received are recorded as investment income when declared.  The carrying
value of the preferred stock at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 equals its original cost of $38,132,000.
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NOTE 6.  INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Our investments in marketable securities include available-for-sale securities and are reported at fair value.
 Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are presented as a component of other comprehensive
income.  Realized gains and losses from securities sales are determined based upon specific identification of the
securities.

Marketable securities consist of the following (in thousands):
September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Amortized
Cost Fair Value Amortized

Cost Fair Value

Common stock of other REITs $4,088 $11,806 $4,183 $11,364
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Gross unrealized gains related to available-for-sale securities were $7,718,000 at September 30, 2012 and $7,181,000
at December 31, 2011.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, we recognized $467,000 and $674,000, respectively, of
dividend income from our marketable securities and have included these amounts in investment income and other in
the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

NOTE 7.  DEFERRED COSTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Deferred costs and other assets consist of the following (in thousands):
September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Equity interest in unconsolidated entity $ 8,309 $ —
Loan costs and prepaid expenses 2,189 1,391
Accounts receivable 593 1,236

$ 11,091 $ 2,627

NOTE 8.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value
due to their short-term nature. The fair value of our borrowings under our credit facility are reasonably estimated at
their carrying value at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, due to the predominance of floating interest rates,
which generally reflect market conditions, and the inclusion of the interest-rate swap agreement on our balance sheet
as a liability at its estimated fair value of $1,343,000 at September 30, 2012. The fair value of our notes receivable is
estimated using inputs that are considered unobservable and fall into Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. We discount
future cash flows using current interest rates at which loans with similar maturities and terms would be made to
borrowers with similar credit ratings.

The fair value and carrying values of our mortgage notes receivable were as follows (in thousands):
September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Mortgages and other notes receivable $79,325 $90,471 $78,672 $88,824

The Company has segregated all assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least
annually) into the most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair
value at the measurement date in the table below.

Entities have the option to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.  Entities that
choose the fair value option will recognize unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option was
elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.  We have currently chosen not to elect the fair value option for
any items that are not already required to be measured at fair value.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using the fair value hierarchy described in Note 1 are
summarized below (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2012
Description Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Common and preferred stocks of other REITs $11,806 $11,806 $— $—
Interest rate swap agreement as cash flow hedge (1,343 ) — (1,343 ) —

$10,463 $11,806 $(1,343 ) $—
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Common and preferred stocks – The fair value of our common and preferred stock investments classified as marketable
securities are derived using quoted market prices of identical securities or other observable inputs such as trading
prices of identical securities in active markets.
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Interest rate swap agreement – The fair value of our interest rate swap as discussed in Note 9 is determined using a
valuation model based on a discounted cash flow analysis as our swap is not traded on a market exchange. The
analysis reflects the contractual terms of the interest rate swap agreement and uses observable market-based inputs,
including estimated future LIBOR interest rates. The fair value of our interest rate swap is the net difference in the
discounted future fixed cash payments and the discounted expected variable cash receipts. The variable cash receipts
are based on the expectation of future interest rates and are observable inputs available to a market participant. The
interest rate swap valuation is classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, in accordance with the FASB’s guidance
on Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.

NOTE 9.  DEBT

On May 1, 2012, we entered into a $320,000,000 unsecured credit facility that includes $175,000,000 of combined
5-year and 7-year term loans that were drawn immediately at closing to pay down our revolving credit borrowings and
for other corporate purposes. The facility also includes an uncommitted incremental facility feature allowing for an
additional $130,000,000 of borrowings, making a total of $450,000,000 available on the facility. The credit facility
was provided by Wells Fargo, Bank of Montreal, KeyBank, and Bank of America, with Pinnacle National Bank as a
participating bank. The credit facility provides for (1) unsecured, revolving borrowings of up to $200,000,000 with
interest at 140 basis points over LIBOR and a maturity of 5 years, (inclusive of an embedded 1 year extension option);
(2) an $80,000,000 unsecured, 5-year term loan with interest at 140 basis points over LIBOR; and (3) a $40,000,000
unsecured, 7-year term loan with interest at 150 basis points over LIBOR. The unused commitment fee is 35 basis
points per annum. The credit facility amended a 4-year $200,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facility entered into
on November 1, 2011, that provided for interest at 150 basis points over LIBOR and an unused commitment fee of 35
basis points per annum. In connection with the modification of our credit facility, we paid $753,000 in debt issuance
costs which is amortized over the life of the amended facility. At September 30, 2012, we had bank term loan
borrowings of $120,000,000 and $55,000,000 outstanding on our revolving credit facility, and we had $145,000,000
available to draw on the facility. Quoted 30-day LIBOR was 22 basis points on September 30, 2012.

As part of the joint venture transaction described in Note 3, Bickford contributed an 85% interest in two facilities
subject to a $19,250,000 mortgage with KeyBank. The loan, which matures on November 22, 2013, provides for
interest at 300 basis points over LIBOR (effective interest rate was at 3.22% at September 30, 2012). There is an
interest rate swap agreement to fix the interest rate paid to KeyBank at 4.5% which is set to expire on December 1,
2012.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In conjunction with the closing of the credit facility on May 1, 2012, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement
to fix the interest rate at 3.04% on the $40,000,000 7-year term loan. The critical terms of this swap agreement are
essentially identical to those of the seven-year term loan and thus, in accordance with ASC Topic 815 Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, is considered a perfectly effective “cash-flow hedge". Accordingly, changes in the
fair value of this cash-flow hedge are included in other comprehensive income rather than net income in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. In the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, if an
asset, the fair value of the hedge is included in deferred costs and other assets, and, if a liability, as a component of
accrued expenses.

At September 30, 2012, the fair value of the swap agreement of $1,343,000 is included as a component of our accrued
expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, and that amount is included in our Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Because no amounts related to
the cash-flow hedge were excluded from the test of effectiveness and no ineffectiveness is assumed, no changes
related to the hedge are expected to be subject to reclassification from other comprehensive income into earnings.
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Information about the estimate of fair value of this interest rate swap agreement is described in Note 8. On November
1, 2011, we terminated a previous interest rate swap agreement. Interest expense in 2011 reflected the reclassification
into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affected earnings and is shown in the table below.
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The following table summarizes interest expense (in thousands):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Interest expense $772 $561 $1,938 $1,597
Amortization of loan costs 82 32 238 109
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement — 1,188 — 922
Total interest expense $854 $1,781 $2,176 $2,628

NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We believe that we have operated our business so as to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and we intend to continue to operate in such a manner, but no
assurance can be given that we will be able to qualify at all times.  Effective October 1, 2012, we will record income
tax expense or benefit with respect to our subsidiary which will be taxed as a Taxable REIT Subsidiary ("TRS") under
provisions similar to those applicable to regular corporations. Aside from such income taxes that may be applicable to
the taxable income in our TRS, we will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax, provided that we continue to qualify
as a REIT and make distributions to stockholders equal to or in excess of our taxable income. This treatment
substantially eliminates the “double taxation” (at the corporate and stockholder levels) that typically applies to corporate
dividends.  Our failure to continue to qualify under the applicable REIT qualification rules and regulations would
cause us to owe state and federal income taxes and would have a material adverse impact on our financial position,
results of operations and cash flows.

Bickford

We have plans to fund 8 assisted living and memory care development projects over the next three years.  Total cost
of each of the 60-bed facilities is expected to average $9,000,000 or less.  The parties expect to initiate up to three
development projects per year over the three-year period.  At September 30, 2012, we had purchased land and begun
construction on two assisted living facilities having a maximum cost of $18,000,000. Our costs incurred to date were
$1,971,000. The facilities will be included in the joint venture with Bickford described in Note 3. At stabilization of
operations, the operating company, OpCo, will pay an annual lease rate of 9% on the total cost of the new facilities,
plus an annual fixed escalator.  Separately from the joint venture, NHI has provided a three-year, $3,000,000
revolving credit facility to Bickford to fund the market feasibility and pre-construction costs related to the new
development projects. Outstanding borrowings on the facility amounted to $61,000 at September 30, 2012.

Kentucky River

In March 2012, we entered into a long-term lease extension and construction commitment to Jackson Hospital
Corporation, an affiliate of Community Health Systems, to provide up to $8,000,000 for extensive renovations and
additions to our Kentucky River Medical Center ("Kentucky River"), a general acute care hospital in Jackson,
Kentucky. This investment will be added to the lease basis on which the lease amount is calculated. The construction
project is expected to commence by the end of 2012 and continue over two years.  The lease extension is for an initial
period of 10 years beginning July 1, 2012, plus one 5-year renewal option.

Legend Healthcare

In October 2011, we completed a purchase/leaseback of four skilled nursing facilities in Texas with affiliates of
Legend Healthcare, LLC (“Legend”) for $55,278,000 which included contingent consideration of $5,478,000. Legend is
eligible for the additional contingent payment if, as is probable, they attain certain performance metrics over the next
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Polaris
In September 2011, we entered into an agreement with Polaris to provide up to $21,500,000 for the development and
construction of a 60-bed acute care hospital in Murfreesboro, Tennessee which became fully operational on September
30, 2012. As of September 30, 2012, we had funded a total of $19,022,000 toward this commitment. Polaris is entitled
to further advances based on a final accounting of all project costs up to the maximum allowed in our original
commitment.
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Santé
In June 2010, we entered into a construction loan commitment to provide up to $13,870,000 to Santé Mesa, LLC
(“Santé”) for the development and construction of a 70-bed transitional rehabilitation hospital with a skilled nursing
license in Mesa, Arizona. The facility opened in March 2011. The $13,870,000 commitment includes an unfunded
$2,000,000 supplemental draw available to the borrower when the facility achieves certain operating metrics. NHI
also has the option to purchase and lease back the hospital when it achieves a predetermined level of stabilized net
operating income.

We have committed to fund a $3,500,000 expansion and renovation program in connection with our acquisition of the
senior living campus in Silverdale, Washington leased to Santé.

Helix Healthcare

In March 2010, we completed a purchase/leaseback transaction with Helix Healthcare (“Helix”) for $12,500,000. The
purchase price includes a conditional payment of $1,000,000.

Capital Funding Group

As described in Note 4, we have agreed to fund up to $15,000,000 on a three-year revolving credit facility with
Capital Funding Group ("CFG") with monthly payments of interest only at an annual rate of 13.5%. At September 30,
2012, we had a principal balance of $5,000,000 on our note with CFG.

Litigation

The health care facilities in which we have investments of leases or loans are subject to claims and suits in the
ordinary course of business.  Our lessees and mortgagors have indemnified, and will continue to indemnify, us against
all liabilities arising from the operation of the health care facilities and will indemnify us against environmental or title
problems affecting the real estate underlying such facilities.  While there are lawsuits pending against certain of the
owners and/or lessees of the health care facilities, management believes that the ultimate resolution of all pending
proceedings will have no material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

As previously disclosed, in November 2008 the Company was served with a Civil Investigative Demand by the Office
of the Tennessee Attorney General (“OTAG”), which indicated that the OTAG was investigating transactions between
the Company and three Tennessee nonprofit corporations. NHI has provided the OTAG with requested information
and documents and has been working with the OTAG with respect to this investigation. All issues have been resolved
with respect to one of the nonprofit corporations, Care Foundation of America, Inc. In November 2011, a receiver was
appointed for the second nonprofit, SeniorTrust of Florida, Inc. As disclosed in our Form 8-K filed September 7,
2012, the receiver of SeniorTrust has caused SeniorTrust to bring a lawsuit against NHI and another party (Davidson
Co. Chancery Court Case No. 12-1275-III). As part of the complaint, SeniorTrust asserts claims that primarily arise
from an allegation that the terms of a 2004 transaction in which NHI sold a group of nursing homes in Kansas and
Missouri to SeniorTrust, with NHI providing 100% financing of the purchase price, were unfair to SeniorTrust.
SeniorTrust also alleges that NHI caused SeniorTrust to enter into other transaction on terms adverse to SeniorTrust.
SeniorTrust seeks compensatory and punitive damages and other relief. NHI has denied SeniorTrust’s claims and
intends to vigorously defend against SeniorTrust’s complaint. NHI also has asserted a counterclaim seeking payment in
full of SeniorTrust’s outstanding debt to NHI upon the receiver’s sale of the assets that secure that debt. In September
2012, a receiver was appointed for the third nonprofit, ElderTrust of Florida, Inc. NHI does not know whether the
receiver for ElderTrust will commence any legal proceedings against NHI. The receiver for SeniorTrust and for
ElderTrust is charged with winding-up the affairs of those entities, which will include the sale of those assets that
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secure the financing provided to each entity by NHI.

During the three months ended September 30, 2012, one of our subsidiaries reached a settlement regarding the final
tax return for the operations acquired through foreclosure and agreed to settle a claim for personal injury in relation to
a matter which arose prior to our acquisition of the subsidiary. These settlements resulted in charges against income in
the amounts of $180,000 and $275,000, respectively.

NOTE 11. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

We recognize share-based compensation for (1) all stock options granted over the requisite service period using the
fair value for these grants as estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model, and (2) all restricted
stock granted over the requisite service period using the market value of our publicly-traded common stock on the
date of grant.
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Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Committee”) has the authority to select the participants to
be granted options; to designate whether the option granted is an incentive stock option (“ISO”), a non-qualified option,
or a stock appreciation right; to establish the number of shares of common stock that may be issued upon exercise of
the option; to establish the vesting provision for any award; and to establish the term any award may be outstanding.
The exercise price of any ISO’s granted will not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares of common
stock on the date granted and the term of an ISO may not be more than ten years. The exercise price of any
non-qualified options granted will not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares of common stock on the
date granted unless so determined by the Committee.

In May 2012, our stockholders approved the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan (“the 2012 Plan”) pursuant to which 1,500,000
shares of our common stock were made available to grant as share-based payments to employees, officers, directors or
consultants. As of September 30, 2012, there were 1,500,000 shares available for future grants under the 2012 plan.
The individual restricted stock and option grant awards vest over periods up to five years. The term of the options
outstanding under the 2012 Plan is up to five years from the date of grant.

In May 2005, our stockholders approved the NHI 2005 Stock Option Plan ("the 2005 Plan") pursuant to which
1,500,000 shares of our common stock were made available to grant as share-based payments to employees, officers,
directors or consultants. As of September 30, 2012, there were 20,635 shares available for future grants under the
2005 plan. The individual restricted stock and option grant awards vest over periods up to ten years. The term of the
options outstanding under the 2005 Plan is up to ten years from the date of grant.

The NHI 1997 Stock Option Plan (“the 1997 Plan”) provides for the granting of options to key employees and directors
of NHI to purchase shares of common stock at a price no less than the market value of the stock on the date the option
is granted. As of September 30, 2012, no shares were available for future grants under this plan. The term of the
options outstanding under the 1997 Plan is five years from the date of the grant.

Compensation expense is recognized only for the awards that ultimately vest. Accordingly, forfeitures that were not
expected may result in the reversal of previously recorded compensation expense. The compensation expense reported
for share-based compensation related to the 2005 Plan and the 1997 Plan totaled $1,924,000 for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012, consisting of $1,923,000 for stock options and $1,000 for restricted stock, as compared to
$2,912,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, consisting of $2,904,000 for stock options and $8,000 for
restricted stock.

At September 30, 2012, we had $692,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options, net of
expected forfeitures, which is expected to be recognized over the following periods: 2012 - $244,000; 2013 -
$400,000, and 2014 - $48,000. Stock-based compensation is included in general and administrative expense in the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The following table summarizes our outstanding stock options :
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012 2011

Options outstanding January 1, 509,422 384,507
Options granted under 2005 Plan 340,000 340,000
Options forfeited under 2005 Plan — (3,334 )
Options exercised under 1997 Plan (19,266 ) (15,000 )
Options exercised under 2005 Plan (488,481 ) (140,917 )
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Options outstanding, September 30, 341,675 565,256

Exercisable at September 30, 165,000 401,664
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The following table summarizes our restricted stock activity:
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012 2011

Non-vested at January 1, 1,250 3,175
Vested during the period (1,250 ) (1,925 )
Non-vested at September 30, — 1,250

NOTE 12. INVESTMENT INCOME AND OTHER

The following table summarizes our investment income and other (in thousands):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Dividend income $976 $972 $2,922 $3,128
Other revenue 372 135 540 371

$1,348 $1,107 $3,462 $3,499

NOTE 13. GAINS ON SALES OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES

During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we sold our 96,330 shares of National HealthCare Corporation’s
convertible preferred stock in addition to the sale of 381,000 common shares of LTC and recognized gains of
$8,809,000.

During the three months ended September 30, 2011, we recognized a gain of $1,090,000 as a result of the sale of our
50,000 common shares of Nationwide Health Properties, Inc. (“NHP”) in exchange for 39,330 common shares of
Ventas, Inc. (“Ventas”) as a result of the acquisition of NHP by Ventas.

NOTE 14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In February 2011, we completed the sale of two medical office buildings. We reclassified the results of operations of
these facilities as discontinued operations for all periods presented in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income. Our lease revenue from the facilities was $-0- and $41,000 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In August 2011, we completed the sale of a 60-unit assisted living facility located in Daytona Beach, Florida to the
current tenant.  We have reclassified the results of operations of this facility as discontinued operations for all periods
presented in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.  Our lease revenue from the facilities
was $-0- and $202,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Income from discontinued operations, excluding gains on sale of real estate, is summarized below (in thousands):
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenues $— $30 $— $243
Expenses:
Depreciation — 6 — 39
Income from operations - discontinued $— $24 $— $204
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As described in Note 2, in September 2012, we canceled our agreement to sell five skilled nursing facilities in Texas
to our current tenant, Fundamental, because of several factors, including obstacles Fundamental faced in securing
HUD financing for the entire group of properties. We have extended the lease term for an additional three years
ending February 29, 2016.
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This portfolio no longer meets the accounting criteria as discontinued operations and we have reclassified our lease
revenue of $3,717,000 and 3,610,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, into
continuing operations in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. We have made provision
for $2,398,000 in "catch-up" depreciation expense in the third quarter of 2012 which is the amount that would have
been recognized as depreciation on these properties had the disposal group been continuously classified as held and
used.
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NOTE 15. EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per common share are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the reporting period.  Diluted earnings per common share assume the exercise of stock options and vesting of
restricted shares using the treasury stock method, to the extent dilutive.

The following table summarizes the average number of common shares and the net income used in the calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Income from continuing operations $14,351 $17,736 $49,628 $59,466
Discontinued operations — 1,072 — 3,552
Net income available to common stockholders $14,351 $18,808 $49,628 $63,018

BASIC:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 27,830,311 27,729,560 27,799,750 27,711,474

Income from continuing operations per common share $.52 $.64 $1.78 $2.14
Discontinued operations per common share — .04 — .13
Net income per common share $.52 $.68 $1.78 $2.27

DILUTED:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 27,830,311 27,729,560 27,799,750 27,711,474
Stock options 32,271 59,010 29,129 82,130
Restricted shares — 1,155 — 1,546
Average dilutive common shares outstanding 27,862,582 27,789,725 27,828,879 27,795,150

Income from continuing operations per common share $.52 $.64 $1.78 $2.14
Discontinued operations per common share — .04 — .13
Net income per common share $.52 $.68 $1.78 $2.27

Incremental shares excluded since anti-dilutive:
Stock options with an exercise price in excess of the
average market price for our common shares 917 37,048 1,972 14,962

Dividends declared per common share $.67 $.615 $1.97 $1.85
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward Looking Statements

References throughout this document to NHI or the Company include National Health Investors, Inc. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries.  In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s “Plain English” guidelines,
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q has been written in the first person.  In this document, the words “we”, “our”, “ours”
and “us” refer only to National Health Investors, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and not any other person.
 Unless the context indicates otherwise, references herein to “the Company” include all of our wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and other materials we have filed or may file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, as well as information included in oral statements made, or to be made, by our senior management
contain certain “forward-looking” statements as that term is defined by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995.  All statements regarding our expected future financial position, results of operations, cash flows, funds from
operations, continued performance improvements, ability to service and refinance our debt obligations, ability to
finance growth opportunities, and similar statements including, without limitations, those containing words such as
“may”, “will”, “believes”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “estimates”, “plans”, and other similar expressions are forward-looking
statements.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results in
future periods to differ materially from those projected or contemplated in the forward-looking statements as a result
of, but not limited to, the following factors:

*We depend on the operating success of our customers (facility operators) for collection of our revenues during this
time of uncertain economic conditions in the U.S.;

*We are exposed to the risk that our tenants and borrowers may become subject to bankruptcy or insolvency
proceedings;

*We are exposed to risks related to governmental regulations and payors, principally Medicare and Medicaid, and the
effect that lower reimbursement rates will have on our tenants’ and borrowers’ business;

*We are exposed to the risk that the cash flows of our tenants and borrowers will be adversely affected by increased
liability claims and general and professional liability insurance costs;

*We are exposed to risks related to environmental laws and the costs associated with the liability related to hazardous
substances;

*We are exposed to the risk that we may not be indemnified by our lessees and borrowers against future litigation;

*We depend on the success of future acquisitions and investments;

*We depend on the ability to reinvest cash in real estate investments in a timely manner and on acceptable terms;

*We may need to incur more debt in the future, which may not be available on terms acceptable to the Company;

*We are exposed to the risk that the illiquidity of real estate investments could impede our ability to respond to
adverse changes in the performance of our properties;
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*We are exposed to risks associated with our investments in joint ventures and unconsolidated entities, including our
lack of sole decision-making authority and our reliance on our joint venture partners' financial condition;

*
We depend on revenues derived mainly from fixed rate investments in real estate assets, while our debt capital used
to finance those investments is primarily available at variable rates. This circumstance creates interest rate risk to the
Company.

*We are exposed to the risk that our assets may be subject to impairment charges;

*We depend on the ability to continue to qualify as a real estate investment trust;

*We have ownership limits in our charter with respect to our common stock and other classes of capital stock;
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*
We are subject to certain provisions of Maryland law and our charter and bylaws that could hinder, delay or prevent
a change in control transaction, even if the transaction involves a premium price for our common stock or our
stockholders believe such transaction to be otherwise in their best interests.

See the notes to the annual audited consolidated financial statements in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2011, and “Business” and “Risk Factors” under Item 1 and Item 1A therein, for a
discussion of various governmental regulations and other operating factors relating to the healthcare industry and the
risk factors inherent in them. You should carefully consider these risks before making any investment decisions in the
Company.  These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones facing the Company.  There may be additional risks
that we do not presently know of or that we currently deem immaterial.  If any of the risks actually occur, our
business, financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.  In that case,
the trading price of our shares of stock could decline and you may lose part or all of your investment.  Given these
risks and uncertainties, we can give no assurance that these forward-looking statements will, in fact, occur and,
therefore, caution investors not to place undue reliance on them.
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Executive Overview

National Health Investors, Inc. (“NHI” or the “Company”), a Maryland corporation incorporated in 1991, is a real estate
investment trust ("REIT") which invests in income-producing health care properties primarily in the long-term care
and senior housing industries.  As of September 30, 2012, our portfolio consisted of real estate (excluding corporate
office) and mortgage investments with a carrying value totaling $598,082,000 and other investments in preferred stock
and marketable securities at a carrying value of $49,938,000, resulting in total invested assets of $648,020,000.  We
are a self-managed REIT with our own management reporting directly to our Board of Directors.  Our mission is to
invest in health care real estate which generates current income that will be distributed to stockholders.  We have
pursued this mission by investing in leased properties and mortgage loans nationwide.  These investments include
skilled nursing facilities, assisted living facilities, medical office buildings, independent living facilities, senior living
campuses and hospitals based on acute and rehabilitative care, all of which are collectively referred to herein as
"Health Care Facilities".  We have funded these investments in the past through three sources of capital: (1) current
cash flow, (2) the sale of equity securities, and (3) debt offerings, including bank lines of credit, the issuance of
convertible debt instruments, and the issuance of ordinary term debt.

Portfolio

At September 30, 2012, our continuing operations consisted of investments in real estate and mortgage notes
receivable in 139 health care facilities located in 25 states consisting of 87 skilled nursing facilities ("SNF"), 36
assisted living facilities ("ALF"), 7 senior living campuses ("SLC"), 4 hospitals ("HOSP"), 3 independent living
facilities ("ILF"), 2 medical office buildings ("MOB") and other notes receivable.  These investments consisted of
approximately $518,757,000 of net real estate investments in 109 health care facilities with 19 lessees and
$79,325,000 aggregate carrying value of mortgage and other notes receivable from 17 borrowers related to 30 health
care facilities.

Major Customer - NHC

National HealthCare Corporation (“NHC”), is a publicly-held company and our largest customer. We lease 41 health
care facilities to NHC. These 41 facilities include four facilities subleased to and operated by other companies, the
lease payments of which are guaranteed to us by NHC. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, rental income
from continuing operations was $64,905,000, of which $27,584,000 (43%) was recognized from NHC. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2011, rental income from continuing operations was $59,868,000, of which $27,156,000
(45%) was recognized from NHC.

Under the terms of the lease, annual base rent is $33,700,000, with additional percentage rent being equal to 4% of the
increase in the gross revenue of each facility over a 2007 base year. The following table summarizes the percentage
rent received and recognized from NHC (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Current year 415 415 1,246 1,246
Prior year final certification1 — — 1,063 635
Total percentage rent 415 415 2,309 1,881
1 For purposes of the percentage rent calculation described in the master lease agreement, NHC’s annual revenue by
facility for a given year is certified to NHI by March 31st of the following year.

Consistent with our strategy of diversification, we have increased our portfolio over time so that the portion of our
portfolio leased by NHC has been reduced from 100% of our total portfolio on October 17, 1991 (the date we began
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operations) to 7.3% of our total portfolio as of September 30, 2012, based on the net book value of these properties.
 In 1991, these assets were transferred by NHC to NHI at their then current net book value in a non-taxable exchange.
 Many of these assets were substantially depreciated as a result of having been presented in NHC’s financial statements
for as many as 20 years.  As a result, we believe that the fair value of these assets is significantly in excess of their net
book value of $43,772,000 at September 30, 2012.  Subsequent additions to the portfolio related to non-NHC
investments reflect a higher value based on existing costs at the date the subsequent investment was made.

As with all assets in our portfolio, we monitor the financial and operating results of each of the NHC properties on a
quarterly basis.  In addition to reviewing the consolidated financial results of NHC, each individual center's financial
results are reviewed including their occupancy, patient mix, and other relevant information.
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The following tables summarize our investments in real estate (excluding corporate office) and mortgage notes
receivable as of September 30, 2012 (dollars in thousands):
Real Estate Properties Properties Beds/Sq. Ft.* Net Investment
Skilled Nursing Facilities 61 8,384 $256,577
Assisted Living Facilities 34 1,419 157,272
Senior Living Campuses 6 945 60,841
Hospitals 3 181 35,951
Independent Living Facilities 3 273 3,634
Medical Office Buildings 2 88,517 * 4,482
Total Real Estate Properties 109 518,757

Mortgage and Other Notes Receivable
Skilled Nursing Facilities 26 2,605 54,804
Assisted Living Facilities 2 190 6,290
Senior Living Campus 1 76 800
Hospital 1 70 11,870
Other Notes Receivable — — 5,561
Total Mortgage and Other Notes Receivable 30 2,941 79,325
Total Portfolio 139 $598,082

Portfolio Summary Properties Investment
Percentage Net Investment

Real Estate Properties 109 86.7 % $518,757
Mortgage and Other Notes Receivable 30 13.3 % 79,325
Total Portfolio 139 100.0 % $598,082

Summary of Facilities by Type
Skilled Nursing Facilities 87 52.2 % $311,381
Assisted Living Facilities 36 27.3 % 163,562
Senior Living Campus 7 10.3 % 61,641
Hospitals 4 8.0 % 47,821
Independent Living Facilities 3 0.6 % 3,634
Medical Office Buildings 2 0.7 % 4,482
Other — 0.9 % 5,561
Total Portfolio 139 100.0 % $598,082

Portfolio by Operator Type
Public 54 14.6 % $87,479
Regional 70 73.3 % 438,103
Small 15 12.1 % 72,500
Total Real Estate Portfolio 139 100.0 % $598,082

Public Operators
National HealthCare Corp. 41 7.2 % $43,772
Emeritus Senior Living 8 3.2 % 19,028
Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. 1 1.9 % 11,087
Community Health Systems, Inc. 2 1.1 % 6,693
Sun Healthcare Group, Inc. 2 1.2 % 6,899
Total Public Operators 54 14.6 % $87,479
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Operators of more than 3% of our total real estate investments are as follows: Bickford Senior Living; Emeritus
Senior Living; Fundamental Long Term Care Holdings, LLC; Health Services Management, Inc.; Legend Healthcare,
LLC; National HealthCare Corp.; SeniorTrust of Florida, Inc; Senior Living Management Corporation, LLC; and
White Pine Senior Living.

As of September 30, 2012, the average effective quarterly rental income was $1,811 per licensed bed for skilled
nursing facilities, $2,775 per unit for assisted living facilities, $1,094 per unit for independent living facilities, $6,339
per bed for hospitals, and $3 per square foot for medical office buildings.

We invest a portion of our funds in the common and preferred shares of other publicly-held REITs to ensure that a
substantial portion of our assets are invested for real estate purposes.  At September 30, 2012, the carrying value of
our investments in common and preferred shares of publicly-held REITs was $49,938,000.  Refer to Notes 5 and 6 of
our condensed consolidated financial statements for further information.

Areas of Focus

We are evaluating and will potentially make investments during the remainder of 2012 while continuing to monitor
and improve our existing properties. We continue to evaluate new portfolio investments and monitor the current prices
being offered for health care assets. However, even as we make new investments, we expect to maintain a relatively
low level of debt compared to the value of our assets and relative to our peers in the industry. New investments in real
estate and mortgage notes in 2012 are expected to be funded by our liquid investments and by debt financing. We
intend to make new investments that meet our underwriting criteria and where we believe the spreads over our cost of
capital will generate sufficient returns to our shareholders.

New Investments

As described in Note 3 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, on September 30, 2012, we acquired two
assisted living/memory care facilities in Kansas totaling 170 units from our current tenant Bickford in a joint venture
transaction. Together with eight assisted living/memory care facilities that we contributed to the joint venture, the real
estate properties are held in our consolidated subsidiary ("PropCo"), of which we retain an 85% ownership interest.
The previous master lease with Bickford was renegotiated so that effective October 1, 2012, the ten facilities are now
leased to an unconsolidated operating company ("OpCo") of which we also acquired an 85% ownership interest. For
accounting purposes, we treated the arrangement as both an asset purchase of two properties in PropCo and the
acquisition of an 85% ownership interest in the residual profits and losses of OpCo which is controlled by Bickford.
The master lease between PropCo and OpCo is for an initial term of five years plus renewal options, and has a 3%
annual lease escalator. NHI is to be provided a guaranteed distribution from PropCo of $6,008,000 in the first year,
plus an annual 3% escalator. We structured our joint venture with Bickford to be compliant with the provisions of the
REIT Investment Diversification and Empowerment Act of 2007 ("RIDEA") which permits NHI to receive rent
payments through a triple-net lease between PropCo, the property company, and the OpCo, and to be designed to give
NHI the opportunity to capture additional value on the improving performance of the operating company through
distributions to a Taxable REIT Subsidiary ("TRS"). Accordingly, the TRS holds our 85% equity interest in OpCo in
order to provide an organizational structure that will allow the TRS to engage in a broad range of activities and share
in revenues that would otherwise be non-qualifying income under the REIT gross income tests. The previous master
lease to Bickford covering eight facilities amounted to revenue of $3,660,000 per year. Our description of the
consideration given to Bickford and the fair value received by NHI of $52,667,000 in the transaction is described in
Note 3 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

In conjunction with the joint venture, Bickford granted us the exclusive right to their future acquisitions, development
project and refinancing transactions. We have agreed to fund eight development projects over three years. At
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September 30, 2012, we had purchased land and begun construction on two assisted living facilities having a
maximum cost of $18,000,000. Our costs incurred to date were $1,971,000.

PropCo and OpCo were established to grant NHI an 85% equity interest in each entity and, to Bickford, the remaining
15% share. At PropCo, all operations encompassing ordinary-course-of-business activities will be under NHI's
management. OpCo’s activities will be managed through an "eligible independent contractor" affiliated with, appointed
under, and subject to the oversight of Bickford. This organizational structure meets the requirements of Internal
Revenue Code regulations for TRS entities. Certain major business decisions at PropCo and OpCo are to be
board-managed with NHI and Bickford each holding 50% voting rights. At PropCo, major business decisions subject
to board-management are restricted to areas involving Bickford’s protective interests, therefore leaving control with
NHI. Business decisions at OpCo are also restricted in nature, though more broadly delineated to allow "substantive
participating rights" by NHI. As a result of Bickford’s retention of operations oversight, control over all
ordinary-course-of-business matters, and 50% voting rights in major decisions, our participative influence at OpCo
does not amount to control of the entity.
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Because of our control of ordinary-course-of-business activities in PropCo, we include its assets, liabilities,
noncontrolling interest and operations in our condensed consolidated financial statements.

We report our investment in OpCo, over whose operating and financial policies we have the ability to exercise
significant influence, but not control, under the equity method of accounting.

We believe that the TRS structure will facilitate our future acquisitions of senior housing assets and permit us to share
in revenues that would otherwise be non-qualifying income under the REIT gross income tests. However, our decision
to acquire future assisted living or skilled nursing assets using the TRS structure will depend upon our ability to
negotiate purchase terms and structure our involvement in a way that complies with the rules governing REITs and
that is economically beneficial to our shareholders.

As described in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements, (1) we have agreed to provide a
three-year, $3,000,000 revolving credit facility to Bickford to fund certain pre-construction costs related to
development projects; (2) in April 2012, we announced a loan commitment to Capital Funding Group to provide up to
$15,000,000 to be used as mezzanine financing for its bridge-to-HUD lending program, of which $5,000,000 was
funded on the loan at closing, (3) in June 2012, we completed the $13,470,000 purchase of a new, stabilized 125-bed
skilled nursing facility in Kyle, Texas that is leased to affiliates of Legend Healthcare, (4) in August 2012, we
completed the $25,120,000 purchase of a senior living campus in Silverdale, Washington totaling 138 units being
leased to affiliates of Sante Partners, LLC and (5) in September 2012, for $12,000,000 we acquired a 100% interest in
a 181-unit senior living campus in Loma Linda, California, being leased to Chancellor Health Care, LLC.

Lease Activity

In June 2012, due to material noncompliance with our lease terms, we terminated our lease with a former tenant of
four assisted living and memory care facilities in Minnesota and transitioned the lease to a new tenant. As a result of
non-payment of scheduled rent, we realized lower cash payments on the lease of $450,000 and $434,000 for the three
months and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively. The unplanned transition to a new tenant resulted in
a write-off for accounting purposes of $963,000 in straight-line rent receivables, $126,000 in billed receivables and
$171,000 in legal and other expenses. The former lease provided for a current annual lease amount of $2,204,000. The
facilities contain a total of 126 units, are four to eight years old, and are now being leased to affiliates of White Pine
Senior Living ("White Pine") for an initial term of 13 years at an annual lease amount of $2,338,000 plus annual fixed
escalators. The first six months of the lease contains additional supplemental rent payments totaling $410,000. Our
rental income, regardless of the timing of scheduled payments, is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease and amounted to $939,000 through September 30, 2012.

Our leases are typically structured as "triple net leases" on single-tenant properties having an initial leasehold term of
10 to 15 years with one or more 5-year renewal options. As such, there may be interim or annual reporting periods in
which we do not experience a lease renewal or expiration. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, we
renewed one lease. The expiring lease on a hospital facility had an original term of 15 years and an annual lease
payment of $53,138 per bed. The new lease agreement is for an initial period of 10 years, plus one 5-year renewal
option and, based on current market and property specific factors, requires an annual lease payment of $46,364 per
bed. During the nine months ended, September 30, 2011, there were no renewed or expired leases.

In September 2012, we canceled our agreement to sell five skilled nursing facilities in Texas to our current tenant,
affiliates of Fundamental Long Term Care Holdings, LLC (“Fundamental”). We agreed to a three-year extension of the
lease to February 29, 2016 with monthly payments continuing at an annual lease amount of $4,989,000 plus annual
fixed escalators. We granted to Fundamental an option during the lease renewal period to purchase three of the
facilities for an aggregate price of $18,500,000.
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As a result of this cancellation, this portfolio no longer meets the accounting criteria as being held for sale and we
have reclassified $29,381,000 previously reported in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as held for sale to
land of $1,735,000, buildings and improvements of $37,588,000, and accumulated depreciation of $9,942,000 at
September 30, 2012. We have reclassified from discontinued operations the portfolio lease revenue of $3,717,000 and
$3,610,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, into continuing operations in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. We recorded $2,398,000 in "catch-up" depreciation
expense in the third quarter of 2012 which is the amount that would have been recognized as depreciation on these
properties had the disposal group been continuously classified as held and used, and we recorded no impairment.
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Real Estate and Mortgage Write-downs

Our borrowers and tenants experience periods of significant financial pressures and difficulties similar to other health
care providers. Governments at both the federal and state levels have enacted legislation to lower or at least slow the
growth in payments to health care providers. Furthermore, the costs of professional liability insurance have increased
significantly during this same period. Since the inception of the Company, a number of our real estate property
operators and mortgage loan borrowers have undergone bankruptcy. Others have surrendered properties to us in lieu
of foreclosure or have failed to make timely payments on their obligations to us.

On July 29, 2011, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) announced the Skilled Nursing Facilities –
Prospective Payment System final rule for fiscal year 2012 that cut Medicare payments to skilled nursing facility
operators by a net 11.1% beginning October 1, 2011. There is the potential for future cuts to Medicare as Congress
attempts to reduce the projected U.S. Government deficit by $1.5 trillion over the next decade. We currently estimate
the majority of our borrowers and lessees will be able to withstand the Medicare cuts described above due to their
credit quality, profitability and their debt or lease coverage ratios, although no assurances can be given as to what the
ultimate effect such Medicare cuts will have on each of our borrowers and lessees. However, as discussed in Note 10
to the condensed consolidated financial statements, SeniorTrust and ElderTrust have appointed receivers to effect the
sale of the assets and the winding up of the affairs of those entities. As a result, these two mortgage borrowers have
been adversely impacted by the Medicare cuts due to their payor mix, their current payment coverage ratios and
limited net equity. The impact of the CMS reduction in Medicare reimbursement could negatively affect their ability
to make full scheduled payments to us and could have an adverse effect on the value of the underlying real estate
assets. We have been in discussions with these borrowers regarding the possible sale of their real estate assets and a
receiver has been appointed for each of these borrowers. The mortgage notes receivable from the borrowers have an
aggregate principal balance of $33,705,000 at September 30, 2012 and interest income amounted to $1,565,000 for the
nine months then ended.

We evaluate the carrying value of our mortgage notes receivable on an instrument-by-instrument basis.  On a quarterly
basis, we review our notes receivable for the effects of events or circumstances, including the non-receipt of
contractual principal and interest payments, significant deterioration of the financial condition of the borrower or
significant adverse changes in general economic conditions, that indicate the carrying value of a note receivable may
not be recoverable.  If necessary, an impairment is measured as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the
discounted cash flows expected to be received under the note receivable or, if foreclosure is probable, the fair value of
the collateral securing the note receivable.

As we have continued to receive interest-only payments on the SeniorTrust mortgage note receivables, we have based
our cash flow analysis on probability-weighted alternatives ranging from continuation of the status quo to partial
collection with cessation of interest. Accordingly, for the three months ended September 30, 2012, we recognized an
impairment to the carrying value of the SeniorTrust note in the amount of $2,300,000. As disclosed in our Form 8-K
filed September 7, 2012, and discussed in Note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements, representatives
of SeniorTrust have filed a lawsuit against NHI. The company has denied SeniorTrust’s claims and intends to
vigorously defend against SeniorTrust’s complaint.

We evaluate the recoverability of the carrying value of our real estate properties on a property-by-property basis.  On a
quarterly basis, we review our properties for events or circumstances that indicate the carrying value of the property
may not be recoverable.  The need to recognize an impairment is based on estimated undiscounted future cash flows
from a property compared to the carrying value of that property.  If recognition of an impairment is necessary, it is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the property exceeds the fair value of the property.

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

49



We believe that the carrying amounts of our real estate properties are recoverable and that mortgage notes receivable
are realizable and supported by the value of the underlying collateral. However, it is possible that future events could
require us to make significant adjustments to these carrying amounts. We recognize interest income in the period in
which cash is received on certain mortgage notes receivable which were previously classified as non-performing.
These notes have an aggregate carrying value of $6,032,000 at September 30, 2012.

28

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

50



Table of Contents

Results of Operations

The results of operations for facilities included in assets held for sale or sold, including the gain or loss on such sales,
have been reported in the current and prior periods as discontinued operations. The reclassifications to retrospectively
reflect the disposition of these facilities had no impact on previously reported net income.

The significant items affecting revenues and expenses are discussed below (in thousands):
Three Months Ended
September 30, Period Change
2012 2011 $ %

Revenues:
Rental income
SNFs leased to Legend Healthcare $2,919 $1,459 $1,460 100.1  %
SLCs leased to Sante Partners 250 — 250 NM
ALFs leased to Senior Living Management 930 798 132 16.5  %
ALFs leased to Selah Management Group 373 319 54 16.9  %
Other new and existing leases 16,565 16,493 72 0.4  %

21,037 19,069 1,968 10.3  %
Straight-line rent adjustments, new and existing leases 1,248 906 342 37.7  %
Total Rental Income 22,285 19,975 2,310 11.6  %
Mortgage interest income
Capital Funding Group 173 — 173 NM
Other new and existing mortgages 1,706 1,689 17 1.0  %
Total Mortgage Interest Income 1,879 1,689 190 11.2  %
Investment income and other1 1,348 1,107 241 21.8  %
Total Revenue 25,512 22,771 2,741 12.0  %
Expenses:
Depreciation
SNFs leased to Fundamental reclassified to continuing operations 2,398 — 2,398 NM
SNFs leased to Legend Healthcare2 526 — 526 NM
Other new and existing assets 2,968 2,930 38 1.3  %
Total Depreciation 5,892 2,930 2,962 101.1  %
Interest expense:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement — 1,188 (1,188 ) NM
Interest expense and amortization of loan costs 854 593 261 44.0  %
Total Interest Expense 854 1,781 (927 ) (52.0 )%
Loan and realty losses (recoveries) 2,300 (99 ) 2,399 NM
Other expenses 2,115 1,513 602 39.8  %

11,161 6,125 5,036 82.2  %
14,351 16,646 (2,295 ) (13.8 )%

Gains on sales of marketable securities3 — 1,090 (1,090 ) (100.0 )%
Income from continuing operations 14,351 17,736 (3,385 )
Income from discontinued operations4 — 24 (24 ) NM
Net gain on sale of real estate4 — 1,048 (1,048 ) NM
Net income $14,351 $18,808 $(4,457 ) (23.7 )%

Net income per common share, basic and diluted $.52 $.68 $(.16 ) (23.5 )%

1 See Note 12 to the condensed consolidated financial statements

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

51



2 Acquired from Legend in 2011
3 See Note 13 to the condensed consolidated financial statements
4 See Note 14 to the condensed consolidated financial statements
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Financial highlights of the three months ended September 30, 2012 compared to the same period in 2011 were as
follows:

•

Rental income increased $2,310,000 or 11.6% when compared to the same period in the prior year primarily as a
result of funding new real estate investments of $75,806,000 in 2011 and $86,049,000 for the first nine months of
2012. Future increases in rental income depend on our ability to make new investments which meet our underwriting
criteria.

•
Depreciation expense increased $2,962,000 or 101.1% primarily due to "catch up" depreciation of $2,398,000 which
was the result of reclassifying the Fundamental skilled nursing facilities to continuing operations. The five facilities
had previously been classified as held for sale beginning in December 2009.

•

Interest expense related to our borrowings on a bank credit facility to fund new real estate and mortgage note
investments. Upfront fees and other loan-related costs are amortized over the term of the credit facility. The
$1,188,000 decrease in the fair value of the interest rate swap agreement increased interest expense in 2011 since the
agreement did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Adjustments to reflect changes in the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreement entered into in 2012, which did qualify as a cash flow hedge, totaling $436,000 were
recorded as a component of other comprehensive income. We expect to fund future healthcare real estate investments
with borrowings from our bank credit facility and possibly longer term U.S. Government agency debt, thereby
increasing our interest expense.

•

As discussed in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, we recorded a $2,300,000 impairment of
our investment in mortgage notes receivable from SeniorTrust which had a carrying amount of approximately
$21,336,000. NHI's continuing collection history with SeniorTrust, and the deterioration of the financial condition and
creditworthiness of the borrower indicated that the carrying value of the mortgage note receivable was not
recoverable.

•

As discussed in Note 10 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, one of our subsidiaries (1) reached a
settlement regarding the final tax return for the operations acquired through foreclosure, and (2) agreed to settle a
claim for personal injury in relation to a matter which arose prior to our acquisition of the subsidiary. These
settlements resulted in charges against income in the amounts of $180,000 and $275,000, respectively, which
accounted for $455,000 of the increase in Other Expenses.
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The significant items affecting revenues and expenses are discussed below (in thousands):
Nine Months Ended
September 30, Period Change
2012 2011 $ %

Revenues:
Rental income
SNFs leased to Legend Healthcare $ 8,156 $ 4,306 $ 3,850 89.4  %
ALFs leased to Selah Management Group 1,017 524 493 94.1  %
SNFs leased to National HealthCare Corp. 27,584 27,156 428 1.6  %
ALFs leased to Senior Living Management 2,765 2,330 435 18.7  %
SLCs leased to SP Silverdale 250 — 250 NM
Other new and existing leases 22,808 22,792 16 0.1  %

62,580 57,108 5,472 9.6  %
Straight-line rent adjustments, new and existing leases 2,325 2,760 (435 ) (15.8 )%
Total Rental Income 64,905 59,868 5,037 8.4  %
Mortgage interest income
Capital Funding Group 323 70 253 361.4  %
Brentwood at Fore Ranch 247 72 175 NM
Other new and existing mortgages 4,858 4,777 81 1.7  %
Total Mortgage Interest Income 5,428 4,919 509 10.3  %
Investment income and other1 3,462 3,499 (37 ) (1.1 )%
Total Revenue 73,795 68,286 5,509 8.1  %
Expenses:
Depreciation
SNFs leased to Fundamental reclassified to continuing operations 2,398 — 2,398 NM
SNFs leased to Legend Healthcare2 1,397 — 1,397 NM
Other new and existing assets 8,858 8,729 129 1.5  %
Total Depreciation 12,653 8,729 3,924 45.0  %
Interest expense
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement — 922 (922 ) NM
Interest expense and amortization of loan costs 2,176 1,706 470 27.5  %
Total Interest Expense 2,176 2,628 (452 ) (17.2 )%
Share-based compensation 1,924 2,912 (988 ) (33.9 )%
Loan and realty losses (recoveries) 2,300 (99 ) 2,399 NM
Other expenses 5,144 4,550 594 13.1  %

24,197 18,720 5,477 29.3  %
49,598 49,566 32

Gains on sales of marketable securities3 30 9,899 (9,869 ) (98.9 )%
Income from continuing operations 49,628 59,465 (9,837 ) (16.5 )%
Income from discontinued operations4 — 204 (204 ) NM
Net gain on sale of real estate4 — 3,348 (3,348 ) NM
Net income $ 49,628 $ 63,017 $ (13,389 ) (21.2 )%

Net income per common share, diluted $ 1.78 $ 2.27 $ (0.49 ) (21.6 )%

1 See Note 12 to the condensed consolidated financial statements
2 Acquired from Legend in 2011
3 See Note 13 to the condensed consolidated financial statements
4 See Note 14 to the condensed consolidated financial statements
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Financial highlights of the nine months ended September 30, 2012 compared to the same period in 2011 were as
follows:

•

Rental income increased $5,037,000 or 8.4% when compared to the same period in the prior year primarily as a result
of funding new real estate investments of $75,806,000 in 2011 and $86,049,000 for the first nine months of 2012.
Future increases in rental income depend on our ability to make new investments which meet our underwriting
criteria.

•
Depreciation expense increased $3,924,000 or 45.0% primarily due to "catch up" depreciation of $2,398,000 which
was the result of reclassifying the Fundamental skilled nursing facilities to continuing operations. The five facilities
were previously classified as held for sale.

•

Interest expense related to our borrowings on a bank credit facility to fund new real estate and mortgage note
investments. Upfront fees and other loan-related costs are amortized over the term of the credit facility. The $922,000
decrease in the fair value of the interest rate swap agreement increased interest expense in 2011 since the agreement
did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Adjustments to reflect changes in the fair value of the interest rate
swap agreement entered into in 2012, which did qualify as a cash flow hedge, totaling $1,343,000 were recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income. We expect to fund future healthcare real estate investments with
borrowings from our bank credit facility and possibly longer term U.S. Government agency debt, thereby increasing
our interest expense.

•

Share-based compensation expense decreased $988,000 or 33.9% when compared to the same period in the prior year
due to decreases in the volatility of our stock price and short-term Treasury rates, which are both inputs to our
valuation model. The market value for all stock option awards is estimated using the Black-Scholes pricing model and
is expensed over the vesting period of the individual grants.

32

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

56



Table of Contents

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources and Uses of Funds

Our primary sources of cash include rent and interest payments, principal payments on mortgage notes receivable,
dividends received on our investments in the common and preferred shares of other REITs, proceeds from the sales of
real property and borrowings from our term loans and revolving credit facility.  Our primary uses of cash include
dividend distributions to our shareholders, debt service payments (including principal and interest), new investments
in real estate and mortgage loans and general corporate overhead.

These sources and uses of cash are reflected in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as summarized
below (dollars in thousands):

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2012 2011 $ Change % Change

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period $15,886 $2,664 $13,222 496.3  %
Cash provided by operating activities 63,735 58,656 5,079 8.7  %
Cash used in investing activities (91,877 ) (5,560 ) (86,317 ) 1,552.5  %
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 16,666 (40,276 ) 56,942 141.4  %
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $4,410 $15,484 $(11,074 ) (71.5 )%

Operating Activities – Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012
increased as a result of the collection of lease payments on real estate investments funded during 2011 and 2012 as
well as the timing of collection of accounts receivable and the payments of accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Investing Activities – Net cash flows used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012
increased as compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to $61,114,000 more in investments in real
estate properties funded during the first nine months of 2012 compared to the same period in 2011. Additionally,
during the first nine months of 2011, we received $12,862,000 as proceeds from the sale of marketable securities and
$8,971,000 as proceeds from the sale of real estate properties, as described in Note 2 and Note 13 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements.

Financing Activities – Net cash flows from financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012
consisted primarily of $77,700,000 in net borrowings on our bank credit facility, which was partially offset by
$60,279,000 in dividends paid to stockholders. Net cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 consisted primarily of dividends paid to stockholders of $50,835,000, which was partially offset
by net borrowings of $12,235,000 on our bank credit facility.

Liquidity

At September 30, 2012, our liquidity was strong, with $161,216,000 available in cash, highly-liquid marketable
securities and borrowing capacity on our revolving credit facility.  In addition, our investment in LTC preferred stock
is convertible into 2,000,000 shares of common stock which had an estimated value of approximately $63,700,000
based on the closing price of such common stock.  Cash proceeds from lease and mortgage collections, loan payoffs
and the recovery of previous write-downs have been distributed as dividends to stockholders, used to retire our
indebtedness, and accumulated in bank deposits for the purpose of making new real estate and mortgage loan
investments.
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Our liquidity in cash accounts and other readily marketable securities (traded on public exchanges) is a result of our
normal operating cash flows from core business investments in leases and mortgage notes as shown in our condensed
consolidated financial statements.

On May 1, 2012, we entered into a $320,000,000 unsecured credit facility that includes $175,000,000 of combined
five-year and seven-year term loans that were drawn immediately at closing to pay down our revolving credit
borrowings and for other corporate purposes. The facility also includes an uncommitted incremental facility feature
allowing for an additional $130,000,000 of borrowings, making a total of $450,000,000 in initial availability. The
credit facility was provided by Wells Fargo, Bank of Montreal, KeyBank, and Bank of America, with Pinnacle
National Bank as a participating bank. The credit facility provides for (1) unsecured, revolving borrowings of up to
$200,000,000 with interest at 140 basis points over LIBOR and a maturity of 5 years (inclusive of an embedded 1 year
extension option); (2) an $80,000,000 unsecured, five-year term loan with interest at 140 basis

33

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

58



Table of Contents

points over LIBOR; and (3) a $40,000,000 unsecured, 7-year term loan with interest at 150 basis points over LIBOR.
The unused commitment fee is 35 basis points per annum. The credit facility amended a 4-year $200,000,000
unsecured revolving credit facility entered into on November 1, 2011, that provided for interest at 150 basis points
over LIBOR and an unused commitment fee of 35 basis points per annum. In connection with the modification of our
credit facility, we paid $753,000 in debt issuance costs which is amortized over the life of the amended facility. At
September 30, 2012, we had bank term loan borrowings of $120,000,000 and $55,000,000 outstanding on our
revolving credit facility, and we had $145,000,000 available to draw on the facility. Quoted 30-day LIBOR was 22
basis points on September 30, 2012.

As part of the joint venture transaction described in Note 3, Bickford contributed an 85% interest in two facilities
subject to a $19,250,000 mortgage with KeyBank. The loan, which matures on November 22, 2013, provides for
interest at 300 basis points over LIBOR (effective interest rate was at 3.22% at September 30, 2012). There is an
interest rate swap agreement to fix the interest rate paid to KeyBank at 4.5% which is set to expire on December 1,
2012.

In conjunction with the closing of our credit facility on May 1, 2012, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement
to fix the interest rate at 3.04% on the $40,000,000 seven-year term loan. The critical terms of this swap agreement are
essentially identical to those of the seven-year term loan, and thus, in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 815
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the interest rate swap agreement is considered a perfectly effective
“cash-flow hedge". Accordingly, changes in the fair value of this cash-flow hedge are included in our Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. In the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, if an asset, the
fair value of the hedge is included in deferred costs and other assets, and, if a liability, as a component of accrued
expenses.

At September 30, 2012, the fair value of the swap agreement of $1,343,000 is included as a component of our accrued
expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, and that amount is included in our Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. Because no amounts related to the cash-flow hedge were excluded from the
test of effectiveness and no ineffectiveness is assumed, no changes related to the hedge are expected to be subject to
reclassification from other comprehensive income into earnings.

We intend to make distributions to stockholders equal to or in excess of our taxable income.  During the first nine
months of 2012, we declared (1) a quarterly dividend of $.65 per common share to shareholders of record on March
31, 2012, payable on May 10, 2012; and (2) a quarterly dividend of $.65 per common share to shareholders of record
on June 30, 2012 and payable on August 10, 2012; and (3) a quarterly dividend of $.67 per common share to
shareholders of record on September 28, 2012 and payable on November 9, 2012.

Dividends declared for the fourth quarter of each fiscal year are paid by the end of the following January and are
treated for tax purposes as having been paid in the fiscal year just ended as provided in IRS Code Sec. 857(b)(8).  The
2011 fourth quarter dividend was $.65 per common share and was paid on January 31, 2012. In addition, a 2011
special dividend of $.22 per common share was declared for shareholders of record on December 31, 2011 and was
paid on January 31, 2012.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently have no outstanding guarantees or letters of credit.

Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities
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As of September 30, 2012, our contractual payment obligations and contingent liabilities were as follows (in
thousands):

Total Year 1 Year 2-3 Year 4-5
Debt, including interest(1) $171,739 $4,533 $27,077 $140,129
Loan commitments 14,989 14,989 — —
Construction commitments 10,478 10,478 — —
Real estate purchase liabilities 6,478 3,739 2,739 —
Capital improvements 146 146 — —

$203,830 $33,885 $29,816 $140,129
(1) Interest is calculated based on the interest rate at September 30, 2012 through maturity of the 5-year and 7-year
term loans, the revolving credit facility, and the mortgages assumed in the joint venture transaction, based on the
balances outstanding as of September 30, 2012.  The calculation also includes an unused balance fee of .35%. See
Note 8 for rate and maturity information.
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Commitments and Contingencies

Bickford

We have plans to fund 8 assisted living and memory care development projects over the next three years.  Total cost
of each of the 60-bed facilities is expected to average $9,000,000 or less.  The parties expect to initiate up to three
development projects per year over the three-year period.  At September 30, 2012, we had purchased land and begun
construction on two assisted living facilities having a maximum cost of $18,000,000. Our costs incurred to date were
$1,971,000. The facilities will be included in the joint venture with Bickford described in Note 3. At stabilization of
operations, the operating company, OpCo, will pay an annual lease rate of 9% on the total cost of the new facilities,
plus an annual fixed escalator.  Separately from the joint venture, NHI has provided a three-year, $3,000,000
revolving credit facility to Bickford to fund the market feasibility and pre-construction costs related to the new
development projects. Outstanding borrowings on the facility amounted to $61,000 at September 30, 2012.

Kentucky River

In March 2012, we entered into a long-term lease extension and construction commitment to Jackson Hospital
Corporation, an affiliate of Community Health Systems, to provide up to $8,000,000 for extensive renovations and
additions to our Kentucky River Medical Center ("Kentucky River"), a general acute care hospital in Jackson,
Kentucky. This investment will be added to the lease basis on which the lease amount is calculated. The construction
project is expected to commence by the end of 2012 and continue over two years.  The lease extension is for an initial
period of 10 years beginning July 1, 2012, plus one 5-year renewal option.

Legend Healthcare

In October 2011, we completed a purchase/leaseback of four skilled nursing facilities in Texas with affiliates of
Legend Healthcare, LLC (“Legend”) for $55,278,000 which included contingent consideration of $5,478,000. Legend is
eligible for the additional contingent payment if, as is probable, they attain certain performance metrics over the next
two years.

Polaris
In September 2011, we entered into an agreement with Polaris to provide up to $21,500,000 for the development and
construction of a 60-bed acute care hospital in Murfreesboro, Tennessee which became fully operational on September
30, 2012. As of September 30, 2012, we had funded a total of $19,022,000 toward this commitment. Polaris is entitled
to further advances based on a final accounting of all project costs up to the maximum allowed in our original
commitment.
Santé
In June 2010, we entered into a construction loan commitment to provide up to $13,870,000 to Santé Mesa, LLC
(“Santé”) for the development and construction of a 70-bed transitional rehabilitation hospital with a skilled nursing
license in Mesa, Arizona. The facility opened in March 2011. The $13,870,000 commitment includes an unfunded
$2,000,000 supplemental draw available to the borrower when the facility achieves certain operating metrics. NHI
also has the option to purchase and lease back the hospital when it achieves a predetermined level of stabilized net
operating income.

We have committed to fund a $3,500,000 expansion and renovation program in connection with our acquisition of the
senior living campus in Silverdale, Washington leased to Santé.

Helix Healthcare
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In March 2010, we completed a purchase/leaseback transaction with Helix Healthcare (“Helix”) for $12,500,000. The
purchase price includes a conditional payment of $1,000,000.

Capital Funding Group

As described in Note 4, we have agreed to fund up to $15,000,000 on a three-year revolving credit facility with
Capital Funding Group ("CFG") with monthly payments of interest only at an annual rate of 13.5%. At September 30,
2012, we had a principal balance of $5,000,000 on our note with CFG.

We believe we have sufficient liquidity and access to capital to fund the commitments described above and to make
new investments in health care real estate.
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Funds From Operations

Our funds from operations (“FFO”) for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 decreased $6,599,000 or 9.7% over
the same period in 2011, due to gains on sales of marketable securities in 2011 of $9,899,000 and other adjustments.
Our normalized FFO for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 increased $6,389,000 or 10.9% over the same
period in 2011, primarily as the result of the impact of our new real estate investments funded in 2011 and 2012. FFO,
as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts ("NAREIT") and applied by us, is net income
(computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of real estate property and impairment
write-downs of depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures, if any. Diluted FFO assumes the exercise of stock options and vesting
of restricted stock using the treasury stock method. Normalized FFO excludes from FFO certain items which, due to
their infrequent or unpredictable nature, may create some difficulty in comparing FFO for the current period to similar
prior periods, and may include, but are not limited to, impairment of assets, gains and losses attributable to the
acquisition and disposition of assets and liabilities, recoveries of previous write-downs, and changes in the fair value
of interest rate swap agreements for those agreements that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

We believe that FFO and normalized FFO are important supplemental measures of operating performance for a REIT.
Because the historical cost accounting convention used for real estate assets requires depreciation (except on land),
such accounting presentation implies that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real
estate values instead have historically risen and fallen with market conditions, presentations of operating results for a
REIT that uses historical cost accounting for depreciation could be less informative, and should be supplemented with
a measure such as FFO. The term FFO was designed by the REIT industry to address this issue. Our measure may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other REITs. Consequently, our FFO may not provide a
meaningful measure of our performance as compared to that of other REITs. Since other REITs may not use our
definition of FFO, caution should be exercised when comparing our Company’s FFO to that of other REITs. FFO in
and of itself does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) (FFO does not include changes in operating assets and liabilities) and therefore should
not be considered an alternative to net earnings as an indication of operating performance, or to net cash flow from
operating activities as determined by GAAP as a measure of liquidity, and is not necessarily indicative of cash
available to fund cash needs.

The following table reconciles net income, the most directly comparable GAAP metric, to FFO and Normalized FFO
and is presented for both basic and diluted weighted average shares (in thousands, except share and per share
amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net income $14,351 $18,808 $49,628 $63,018
Elimination of certain non-cash items in net income:
Real estate depreciation in continuing operations 5,509 2,709 11,578 8,096
Real estate depreciation in discontinued operations — 6 — 39
Net gain on sale of real estate — (1,048 ) — (3,348 )
Funds from operations $19,860 $20,475 $61,206 $67,805
Gains on sales of marketable securities — (1,090 ) (30 ) (9,899 )
Loan impairments (recoveries) 2,300 (99 ) 2,300 (99 )
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement — 1,188 — 922
Non-cash write-off of straight-line rent receivable — — 963 —
Write-offs and expenses due to early lease termination — — 297 —
Legal settlements 275 — 365 —
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Other items (78 ) — 17 —
Normalized FFO $22,357 $20,474 $65,118 $58,729

BASIC
Weighted average common shares outstanding 27,830,311 27,729,560 27,799,750 27,711,474
FFO per common share $.71 $.74 $2.20 $2.45
Normalized FFO per common share $.80 $.74 $2.34 $2.12

DILUTED
Weighted average common shares outstanding 27,862,582 27,789,725 27,828,879 27,795,150
FFO per common share $.71 $.74 $2.20 $2.44
Normalized FFO per common share $.80 $.74 $2.34 $2.11
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The results of operations for facilities included in assets held for sale or facilities sold have been reported in the
current and prior periods as discontinued operations.  The reclassifications to retrospectively reflect the disposition of
these facilities had no impact on previously reported FFO.

Funds Available for Distribution

Our funds available for distribution (“FAD”) for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 decreased $6,708,000 or
9.8% over the same period in 2011, due to gains on sales of marketable securities in 2011 of $9,899,000 and other
adjustments. Our normalized FAD for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 increased $5,317,000 or 8.9% over
the same period in 2011 due primarily to the impact of real estate investments funded in 2011 and 2012. FAD
represents net earnings available to common stockholders, excluding the effects of asset dispositions and straight-line
rent adjustments, plus depreciation, stock based compensation and changes in the fair value of our interest rate swap
agreement, if any. Diluted FAD assumes the exercise of stock options using the treasury stock method. Normalized
FAD excludes from FAD certain items which, due to their infrequent or unpredictable nature, may create some
difficulty in comparing FAD for the current period to similar prior periods, and may include, but are not limited to,
impairment of assets, gains and losses attributable to the acquisition and disposition of assets and liabilities, recoveries
of previous write-downs, and changes in the fair value of interest rate swap agreements for those agreements that do
not qualify for hedge accounting.

Since other REITs may not use our definition of FAD, caution should be exercised when comparing our Company’s
FAD to that of other REITs.  FAD in and of itself does not represent cash generated from operating activities in
accordance with GAAP (FAD does not include changes in operating assets and liabilities) and therefore should not be
considered an alternative to net earnings as an indication of operating performance, or to net cash flow from operating
activities as determined by GAAP as a measure of liquidity, and is not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund
cash needs.

The following table reconciles net income, the most directly comparable GAAP metric, to FAD and Normalized FAD
and is presented for basic and diluted weighted average shares (in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net income $14,351 $18,808 $49,628 $63,018
Elimination of certain non-cash items in net income:
Depreciation in continuing operations 5,892 2,930 12,653 8,729
Depreciation in discontinued operations — 6 — 39
Net gain on sale of real estate — (1,048 ) — (3,348 )
Straight-line lease revenue, net (1,248 ) (907 ) (2,325 ) (2,762 )
Non-cash stock based compensation 244 267 1,924 2,912
Funds available for distribution $19,239 $20,056 $61,880 $68,588
Gains on sales of marketable securities — (1,090 ) (30 ) (9,899 )
Loan impairments (recoveries) 2,300 (99 ) 2,300 (99 )
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement — 1,188 — 922
Write-offs and expenses due to early lease termination — — 297 —
Legal settlements 275 — 365 —
Other items (78 ) — 17 —
Normalized FAD $21,736 $20,055 $64,829 $59,512

BASIC

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q

65



Weighted average common shares outstanding 27,830,311 27,729,560 27,799,750 27,711,474
FAD per common share $.69 $.72 $2.23 $2.48
Normalized FAD per common share $.78 $.72 $2.33 $2.15

DILUTED
Weighted average common shares outstanding 27,862,582 27,789,725 27,828,879 27,795,150
FAD per common share $.69 $.72 $2.22 $2.47
Normalized FAD per common share $.78 $.72 $2.33 $2.14
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Impact of Inflation

Inflation may affect us in the future by changing the underlying value of our real estate or by impacting the cost of
financing our operations. Our revenues are generated primarily from long-term investments in health care real estate
and mortgage loans. Our lessees and borrowers are operators of health care facilities which are directly impacted by
inflation in employee-related costs and other facility expenses. Inflation has remained relatively low during recent
periods. There can be no assurance that future Medicare, Medicaid or private pay rate increases will be sufficient to
offset future inflation increases. Certain of our leases require annual escalators in lease rates based upon increases in
the revenues of the tenants.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2012, we were exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest rates on approximately
$80,000,000 of variable-rate indebtedness (excludes $59,250,000 of variable-rate debt that has been hedged through
an interest-rate swap contract) and on our mortgage loans receivable. The unused portion ($145,000,000 at September
30, 2012) of our credit facility, should it be drawn upon, is subject to variable rates. See Note 9 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our debt.

Interest rate fluctuations will generally not affect our future earnings or cash flows on our fixed rate debt and loans
receivable unless such instruments mature or are otherwise terminated. However, interest rate changes will affect the
fair value of our fixed rate instruments. Conversely, changes in interest rates on variable rate debt and investments
would change our future earnings and cash flows, but not significantly affect the fair value of those instruments.
Assuming a 50 basis point increase or decrease in the interest rate related to variable-rate debt, and assuming no
change in the outstanding balance as of September 30, 2012, net interest expense would increase or decrease annually
by approximately $675,000 or $0.02 per weighted average common share on a diluted basis.

We use derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business to mitigate interest rate risk. We do not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. Derivatives are included in the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets at their fair value. See Note 9 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional
information. We may engage in hedging strategies to manage our exposure to market risks in the future, depending on
an analysis of the interest rate environment and the costs and risks of such strategies.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our debt (dollar amounts in thousands):

September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Balance Percent1 Rate2 Balance Percent1 Rate

Fixed rate:
Unsecured 7-year term loan $40,000 20.6 % 3.04 % — — —
Mortgage loan - secured 19,250 9.9 % 4.50 % — — —
Variable rate:
Unsecured 5-year term loan 80,000 41.2 % 1.62 % — — —
Unsecured revolving credit facility 55,000 28.3 % 1.63 % 97,300 100.0 % 2.77 %

$194,250 100.0 % 2.20 % 97,300 100.0 % 2.77 %
1 Percent of total debt
2 Total is a weighted average rate

The variable rate debt in the table above reflects, in part, the effect of a $40,000,000 notional amount of interest rate
swaps with an April 2019 maturity that effectively convert fixed rate debt to variable rate debt. To highlight the
sensitivity of this fixed rate debt to changes in interest rates, the following summary shows the effects on fair value
("FV") assuming a parallel shift of 50 basis points ("bps") in market interest rates for a contract with similar maturities
as of September 30, 2012 (dollar amounts in thousands):

September 30, 2012

Balance Fair Value1 FV reflecting change in
interest rates

Fixed rate: -50 bps +50 bps
Unsecured 7-year term loan $40,000 $41,343 $42,597 $40,131
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1 The change in fair value of our fixed rate debt was due primarily to the overall change in interest rates.

At September 30, 2012, the fair value of our mortgage loans receivable, discounted for estimated changes in the
risk-free rate, was approximately $90,471,000. A 50 basis point increase in market rates would decrease the estimated
fair value of our mortgage loans by approximately $1,600,000, while a 50 basis point decrease in such rates would
increase their estimated fair value by approximately $1,700,000.
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Equity Price Risk

We account for our investments in marketable securities, with a fair value of $11,806,000 at September 30, 2012, as
available-for-sale securities. Increases and decreases in the fair market value of our investments in other marketable
securities are unrealized gains and losses that are presented as a component of other comprehensive income. The
investments in marketable securities are recorded at their fair value based on quoted market prices. Thus, there is
exposure to equity price risk, which is the potential change in fair value due to a change in quoted market prices. We
monitor our investments in marketable securities to consider evidence of whether any portion of our original
investment is likely not to be recoverable, at which time we would record an impairment charge to operations. A
hypothetical 10% change in quoted market prices would result in a related $1,181,000 change in the fair value of our
investments in marketable securities.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

    Evaluation of Disclosure Control and Procedures. As of September 30, 2012, an evaluation was performed under
the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and our
Chief Accounting Officer (“CAO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of management’s disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934) to ensure
information required to be disclosed in our filings under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, is (i) recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms; and (ii)
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEO and our CAO, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.  Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how
well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving desired control objectives, and
management is necessarily required to apply its judgment when evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of potential
controls and procedures.  Based upon the evaluation, the CEO and our CAO concluded that the design and operation
of these disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2012.

There were no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these
controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting identified in management’s evaluation during the three months ended September 30, 2012 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II.  OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings.

The Health Care Facilities are subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business.  Our lessees and
borrowers have indemnified and are obligated to continue to indemnify us against all liabilities arising from the
operation of the Health Care Facilities, and are generally obligated to indemnify us against environmental or title
problems affecting the real estate underlying such facilities. While there may be lawsuits pending against certain of
the owners and/or lessees of the Health Care Facilities, management believes that the ultimate resolution of all such
pending proceedings will have no material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows.

As previously disclosed, in November 2008 the Company was served with a Civil Investigative Demand by the Office
of the Tennessee Attorney General (“OTAG”), which indicated that the OTAG was investigating transactions between
the Company and three Tennessee nonprofit corporations. NHI has provided the OTAG with requested information
and documents and has been working with the OTAG with respect to this investigation. All issues have been resolved
with respect to one of the nonprofit corporations, Care Foundation of America, Inc. In November 2011, a receiver was
appointed for the second nonprofit, SeniorTrust of Florida, Inc. As disclosed in our Form 8-K filed September 7,
2012, the receiver of SeniorTrust has caused SeniorTrust to bring a lawsuit against NHI and another party (Davidson
Co. Chancery Court Case No. 12-1275-III). As part of the complaint, SeniorTrust asserts claims that primarily arise
from an allegation that the terms of a 2004 transaction in which NHI sold a group of nursing homes in Kansas and
Missouri to SeniorTrust, with NHI providing 100% financing of the purchase price, were unfair to SeniorTrust.
SeniorTrust also alleges that NHI caused SeniorTrust to enter into other transaction on terms adverse to SeniorTrust.
SeniorTrust seeks compensatory and punitive damages and other relief. NHI has denied SeniorTrust’s claims and
intends to vigorously defend against SeniorTrust’s complaint. NHI also has asserted a counterclaim seeking payment in
full of SeniorTrust’s outstanding debt to NHI upon the receiver’s sale of the assets that secure that debt. In September
2012, a receiver was appointed for the third nonprofit, ElderTrust of Florida, Inc. NHI does not know whether the
receiver for ElderTrust will commence any legal proceedings against NHI. The receiver for SeniorTrust and for
ElderTrust is charged with winding-up the affairs of those entities, which will include the sale of those assets that
secure the financing provided to each entity by NHI.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, there were no material changes to the risk factors that were
disclosed in Item 1A of National Health Investors, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and as updated in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012, except
for the risk factors that are stated as follows:

We are exposed to risks associated with our investments in joint ventures and unconsolidated entities, including our
lack of sole decision-making authority and our reliance on our joint venture partners' financial condition.

Our investments in joint ventures could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision-making authority regarding
major decisions, our reliance on our joint venture partners' financial condition, any disputes that may arise between us
and our joint venture partners, and our exposure to potential losses from the actions of our joint venture partners.

•We may be unable to take actions that are opposed by our joint venture partners regarding major decisions concerning
the ownership or operation of the joint venture;

•Our ability to transfer our interest to a third party may be restricted without prior consent of our joint venture partners;
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•Our joint venture partners might become bankrupt or fail to fund their share of required capital contributions, which
may hinder significant action in the joint venture;

•Our joint venture partners may have business interests or goals that conflict with ours, which could increase the
likelihood of disputes regarding management, ownership or disposition of a property or the joint venture;

•
We may disagree with our joint venture partners about decisions affecting a property or the joint venture, which could
result in litigation or arbitration that increases our expenses, distracts our officers and directors and disrupts the
day-to-day operations of the property, including by delaying important decisions until the dispute is resolved; and

•We may suffer losses as a result of actions taken by our joint venture partners with respect to our joint venture
investments.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form S-11 Registration Statement
No. 33-41863)

3.2 Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Company’s
Definitive Proxy Statement filed March 23, 2009)

3.3 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-11 Registration Statement No. 33-41863)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: November 2, 2012 /s/ J. Justin Hutchens
J. Justin Hutchens
President, Chief Executive Officer,
and Director

Date: November 2, 2012 /s/ Roger R. Hopkins
Roger R. Hopkins
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)
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